
 
 

14 September 2020 at 10.30 am 
 
This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and  
will be livestreamed here: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UClT1f_F5OfvTzxjZk6Zqn6g 

Despatched: 27.08.20 

 

 

Licensing Hearing  
 

 

Membership: (Sub Group C)    
Cllrs. Abraham, Dr. Canet and Esler 
 
(Each Licensing Sub-Committee will contain three Members of the Licensing 
Committee. Any member of the Licensing Committee may act as a substitute on 
any of the licensing Sub-Committees) 
 
IMPORTANT INFORMATION 
If an interested party (e.g. a parish or town council) has not made a "relevant 
representation" (section 18(6) and (7) of the Licensing Act 2003), it will not receive 
a notice of the hearing (Reg. 6(1) Hearings Regulations). The interested party will 
not, therefore be "a party to the hearing" (Reg. 2 Hearings Regulations). There will 
therefore be no right to address the hearing (Reg. 16 Hearings Regulations). 
The above also applies to a Member i.e. if s/he does not make a "relevant 
representation" s/he will not be a "party to the hearing" and has no right to address 
the hearing unless appointed by "a party to the hearing" to assist or represent that 
party. 
 

Agenda 
 
Apologies for Absence 
 

Pages Contact 

1.   Appointment of Chairman     
 

2.   Declarations of interest     
 

3.   Report to Licensing Sub-Committee - For a 
New Premises Licence in respect of 
Blackwoods Cheese Company, Bore Place 
Road, Chiddingstone, Kent, TN8 7AR  

(Pages 1 - 36) Jessica Foley 
Tel: 01732227480 

 (Leigh and Chiddingstone Causeway) 
 

  

If you wish to obtain further factual information on any of the agenda items listed 
above, please contact the named officer prior to the day of the meeting. 
 
Should you need this agenda or any of the reports in a different format, or  
have any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact 
Democratic Services on 01732 227000 or democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk. 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UClT1f_F5OfvTzxjZk6Zqn6g
mailto:democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk


 
 

 
 
Procedures at Sub-Committees of the Licensing Committee  
 
1. Licensing Act 2003 

1.1 Hearings shall be conducted in accordance with this Procedure Note which 
the Sub-Committee may vary at their discretion if considered in the public 
interest subject to The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 

1.2 The quorum for a Sub-Committee shall be two members. 

1.3 At the commencement of each hearing the Sub-Committee shall elect one 
of its members as Chairman. 

1.4 The order of business at hearings shall be: 

(a) Election of Chairman. 

(b) Declarations of interests. 

(c) Chairman explains the procedure to be followed at the hearing, 
including the setting of equal time limits for all parties and the 
granting of adjournments.   

(d) Chairman ascertains who is assisting or representing the parties. 

(e) Officer presentation of report 

(f) Applicant (or his/her representative) addresses the Sub-Committee. 

(g) Applicant questioned by members. At the discretion of the Sub-
Committee, other parties may be permitted to question the 
applicant. 

(h) Any representatives of Public or Statutory Bodies who have made 
representations in respect of the application (or their representative) 
address the Sub-Committee. No issues other than those relevant to 
their representations may be raised. 

 
(i) Members question each party at the conclusion of their address. At 

the discretion of the Sub-Committee, the applicant may be permitted 
to question other parties. 

 

(j) Other persons who have made representations in respect of the 
application (or their representative) address the Sub-Committee. No 
issues other than those relevant to their representations may be 
raised. 

(k) Members question each party at the conclusion of their address. At 
the discretion of the Sub-Committee, the applicant may be permitted 
to question other parties. 



 
 

(l) Sub-Committee may offer the parties a short adjournment to discuss 
in the absence of the Sub-Committee whether a solution acceptable 
to all the parties can be put to the Sub-Committee. 

(m) Applicant (or his/her representative) makes closing address.  

(n) Sub-Committee may grant a short adjournment. The parties may not 
speak to members regarding the application during adjournments. 

(o) The Sub-Committee considers the application and motions put to 
accept or reject the application in the terms requested or to grant 
the application subject to specified conditions. Reasons are to be 
given for motions.  

The parties will usually be informed of the decision at the Hearing with a decision 
notice issued thereafter in accordance with Regulation 26 of the 2005 Regulation, 
along with details of any applicable appeals process. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE FOLLOWING RECEIPT OF 
REPRESENTATIONS IN RELATION TO AN APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES 
LICENCE MADE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 FOR BLACKWOODS CHEESE 
COMPANY, BORE PLACE ROAD, CHIDDINGSTONE, KENT  TN8 7AR 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 14 SEPTEMBER 2020 

Report of  Chief Officer, Planning & Regulatory Services 

Status For Decision  

Key Decision No 

Executive Summary: This report provides information to advise Members of a new 
premises licence application under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of Blackwoods 
Cheese Company, Bore Place Road, Chiddingstone, Kent  TN8 7AR 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Margot McArthur 

Contact Officer Jessica Foley, Ext. 7480 

Recommendation to Licensing Sub-Committee   

Options available to Members are: 

a)    To grant the application in full on the terms and conditions contained in the  
       operating schedule along with relevant mandatory conditions 

b)    To grant the application, modified to such an extent as considered appropriate  
        in order to satisfy any relevant representations so as to adequately promote  
        the licensing objectives. 

c)    To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 

d)    To refuse to specify a person on the licence as the premises supervisor 

e)    To refuse the application in its entirety 

Reason for recommendation:  Each application must be considered on its 
individual merits and in relation to the licensing objectives under the Licensing Act 
2003.  Members are asked to consider the options above in light of the individual 
circumstances of this application and representations and testimony received at 
Hearing. 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

Introduction  

1 An application has been made to Sevenoaks District Council for a Premises 
Licence at Blackwoods Cheese Company, Bore Place Road, Chiddingstone, 
Kent TN8 7AR.  The applicant is Blackwoods Cheese Company Limited.  A 
copy of the application is included at Appendix A.  Additional steps to 
promote the licensing objectives (Operating Schedule) at Appendix B.  A 
copy of the plans is included at Appendix C. 

Please note; the application was initially submitted on 7th April 2020, but 
amendments were made and the application finally validated on 20th July 
2020. 

For Members attention, I have attached an aerial view of the area 
surrounding Blackwoods Cheese Company for reference at Appendix D 

2 The licensable activities applied for are: 

Sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises from 9am to 6pm Sunday 
through to Thursday, and 8am to 8pm on Friday and Saturday. 

3 When submitting an application for a new premises licence, the applicant is 
required to describe any steps they intend to take to promote the four 
licensing objectives, as defined by the Licensing Act 2003, and those steps 
submitted by the applicant are set out below: 

 (Note:  The ‘General’ steps below form part of the application at Appendix 
1, the remaining steps were submitted as an attachment to the application 
at Appendix 2) 

 General 
All stock of alcohol will be kept inside the premises, when no staff are 
present the premises will be locked. 
Proof of age will be required for purchase 
No alcohol will be sold to minors or those who appear intoxicated  

 Prevention of crime and disorder 
Effective and responsible management of premises 
Training and supervision of staff 
Adaption of best practice guidance 
Acceptance of accredited proof of age card and/or ‘new type’ driver license 

Public safety 
Effective and responsible management of premises 
Provisions of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure 
the safety of the premises and patrons 
Appropriate instruction, training, and supervision of those employed 
Adoption of best practice guidance 

The prevention of public nuisance 
Responsible management of premises  

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



 

Appropriate instruction, training and supervision to prevent incidents of 
public nuisance 
Control of operating houses 
Adoption of best practice guidance 
Management of people 

The prevention of children from harm 
Effective and responsible management or premises 
Provision of a sufficient number of people to secure the protection of 
children from harm 
Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed 
Adaption of best practice guidance 
Limitations or exclusions by age when certain activities are taking place 
Acceptance of accredited proof of age cards 

Background 

4 Blackwoods Cheese Company Limited are providers of real and raw cheese 
and dairy products. 

5 The applicant was required to advertise both on the premises and in a local 
newspaper in order to inform the public of the application.  Application 
details were also advertised on the Council’s website. 

6 A consultation period took place between 20th July 2020 and the 17th August 
2020.  Responsible Authorities (listed below at point 8) were consulted as 
part of this process. 

7 The applicant conformed to all requirements in accordance with The 
Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) 
Regulations 2005. 

Representation received from Responsible Authorities 

8 The following Statutory Bodies (described as Responsible Authorities by the 
Licensing Act 2003) were consulted about this application: 

 Kent Police     Response received (no objection) 
Kent Fire & Rescue    Response received (no objection) 
Trading Standards    No response received 
Home Office     No response received 
Social Services    No response received 
Environmental Health & Safety  Response received (no objection) 
Public Health Department   No response received 
Environmental Protection   Response received (no objection) 
SDC Planning     Response received (no objection) 

Representations received from others 

9 Two representations (from Roger and Lindsey Perkin, and Michael and 
Elizabeth North) objecting to this application have been received from 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

neighbouring properties.  The grounds of the objections relate to the 
licensing objectives ‘crime and disorder’, ‘public safety’ and ‘the protection 
of children from harm’.  Copies of the representations are at Appendix E 
and Appendix F. 

Licensing Sub Committee Considerations 

10 The 2003 Act requires the Council to carry out is various licensing functions 
so as to promote the following four licensing objectives: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
Public safety 
The prevention of public nuisance 
The protection of children from harm 

11 Sevenoaks District Council has produced a Statement of Licensing Policy in 
order to comply with its duties and powers under the Licensing Act 2003.  It 
covers the licensable activities for retail sale of alcohol which is the subject 
of this application. 

 The aims of this Statement of Licensing Policy, in line with the four licensing 
objectives are: 

- To minimise nuisance and disturbance to the public through the licensing  
   process. 
- To help build a fair and prosperous society that properly balances the  
   rights of people and their communities 
- To integrate its aims and objectives with other initiatives, policies plus  
   strategies that will: 
  reduce crime and disorder 
  encourage tourism 
  encourage an early evening and night time economy which is viable,  
  sustainable and socially responsible 
  reduce alcohol misuse 
  encourage employment 
  encourage the self-sufficiency of local communities 
  reduce the burden of unnecessary regulation on business 
  encourage and promote live music, dancing and theatre for the wider  
  cultural benefit of communities generally.  

12 The Licensing Authority is aware that in making decisions about applications 
for licences, it will have regard to: 

The Licensing Act 2003 
Its Statement of Licensing Policy made under section 5 of the Licensing Act 
2003. 
Statutory Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, and 
that decisions made are reasonably consistent with the four licensing 
objectives. 
That any decision made that depart from guidance or policy only do so for 
reasons set out in the decision. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



 

13 The Licensing Sub Committee should be mindful of requirements and 
responsibilities placed on them by other legislation, in addition to those 
contained within the Licensing Act 2003.  These include, but are not limited 
to, having due regard to the Equality Act 2010 and the Human Rights Act 
1998. 

14 The Sub-Committee is asked to note the procedures relating to this hearing 
which are contained with The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing Regulations) 2005 
(as amended). 

Right of Appeal 

16 Under Section 181 and Schedule 5 of the Act, there is a right of appeal to 
the Magistrates’ Court in respect of applications for new licences.  This right 
of appeal is open to both the applicant and to any person who has made 
relevant representation.  The appeal application must be made within 21 
days of the written notification of the Sub-Committee’s decision. 

Key Implications 

Financial  

None directly arising from this report 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement.  

This Hearing is regulated by The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005  
 
The decision is to be made with regard to the Licensing Act 2003, Secretary of 
State's Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act and the Council's Statement of 
Licensing Policy. Where the decision departs from the Policy or Guidance the 
departure must be directed solely at the attainment of the licensing objectives, 
and such departure must be supported by clear and cogent reasons. 
 
Equality Assessment   

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to 
the substance of the Equality Act.  There is no perceived impact on end users. 

Appendices Appendix A – Application form 

Appendix B – Operating Schedule 

Appendix C – Plans 

Appendix D – Aerial view 

Appendix E – Representation : Perkin 

Appendix F – Representation : North 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Background Papers SDC Statement of Licensing Policy 

The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regs 2005 

Licensing Act 2003 Section 182 Guidance 

Licensing Act 2003 

Richard Morris 
Chief Officer for Planning & Regulatory Services 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3

https://www.sevenoaks.gov.uk/downloads/file/2521/statement_of_licensing_policy
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents


APPENDIX A

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Page 10

Agenda Item 3



Page 11

Agenda Item 3



Page 12

Agenda Item 3



Page 13

Agenda Item 3



Page 14

Agenda Item 3



Page 15

Agenda Item 3



Page 16

Agenda Item 3



Page 17

Agenda Item 3



Page 18

Agenda Item 3



Page 19

Agenda Item 3



Page 20

Agenda Item 3



Page 21

Agenda Item 3



Page 22

Agenda Item 3



The prevention of Crime and disorder APPENDIX B
In order to limit the following factors: 

-Underage drinking

-Drunkenness on premises

-Public drunkenness

-Violent Behavior

-Anti social behavior

-Irresponsible drinks promotions

We will be implementing the following measures of control: 

-Effective and responsible management of premises

-Training and supervision of staff

-Adaption of best practice guidance

-Acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age card and/ or ‘new type’ driver license

Public Safety 

In order to limit the following factors: 

-The occupancy capacity of the premises

-The age/design/layout of the premises

-The nature of the licensable activities to be provided

-The hours of operations

-Customer profile (age and disability)

-The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke, etc.

We will be implementing the following measures of control: 

-Effective and responsible management of premises

-Provisions of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure the safety of the

premises and patrons

-Appropriate instruction, training, and supervision of those employed

-Adoption of best practice guidance

The prevention of public Nuisance 

In order to limit the following factors: 

-The location of the premises

-The hours of operation

-The nature of activities to be provisioned

-The design and layout of the premises

-The emission of noise/music from the premises

-The occupancy capacity

-Local residential property

-History of previous complaints

Page 23

Agenda Item 3



We will be implementing the following measures of control: 

-Responsible management of premises 

-Appropriate instruction, training and supervision to prevent incidents of public nuisance 

-Control of operating houses 

-Adoption of best practice guidance 

-Management of people 

 

The prevention of children from harm 

In order to limit the following factors: 

-purchase, acquire or consume alcohol 

-be exposed to drugs, drug taking or drug dealing 

-be exposed to gambling 

-be exposed to activities of an adult or sexual nature 

-be exposed to incidents of violence or disorder 

-be exposed to environmental pollution 

-be exposed to special hazards 

 

We will be implementing the following measures of control: 

-Effective and responsible management or premises 

-Provision of a sufficient number of people to secure the protection of children from harm 

-Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed 

-Adaption of best practice guidance 

-Limitations or exclusions by age when certain activities are taking place 

-Acceptance of accredited proof of age cards 

Page 24

Agenda Item 3



4.
5

22

4.
5

228.5

4.
51

2.4

2.
6

2.4 5

4.
5

6.5

2.
15

4.
660.

2

2.
11

1

4.
51

4.
51

1.
63

1.3

MAKE ROOM

PACKING ROOM

OFFICE

KITCHEN

COLD ROOM

DRY STORE

1.3 2.6

6.54

2.
1

MATURATION ROOM

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 3

slindsey
Typewriter
APPENDIX C



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2020
Ordnance Survey 100019428

Date: August 2020
Scale: 1:1,250 @ A4

Map generated from SDC GISMO.
Produced by the GIS Team, Sevenoaks District Council

** Map Title **

0 6030
m

I

Any Aerial Imagery is © Copyright Getmapping PLC or
© Copyright Getmapping PLC and Bluesky Ltd

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2020
Ordnance Survey 100019428

Date: August 2020
Scale: 1:2,500 @ A4

Map generated from SDC GISMO.
Produced by the GIS Team, Sevenoaks District Council

** Map Title **

0 12562.5
m

I

Any Aerial Imagery is © Copyright Getmapping PLC or
© Copyright Getmapping PLC and Bluesky Ltd

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

                     

APPENDIX E 

From:  

Sent: 17 August 2020 15:14 

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 

Subject: Licensing Application 20/01048 

 

For the attention of Ms. Jessica Foley 

 

We wish to make representation about the above licensing application . 

 

The granting of this licence will undermine the promotion of: 

 

Public safety .  

Bore Place Road , the principal access road to the premises , is very 

narrow , with blind bends . It is used  

, inter alia, by many cyclists, horse riders and walkers ( many of whom 

are children )  . If granted , there  

will be an inevitable increase vehicular traffic which will significantly 

increase the risk to public safety.  

 

Your sincerely 

 

Roger and Lindsey Perkin 

TN87AP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

         APPENDIX F 

  

From:   

Sent: 17 August 2020 15:41  

To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk>  

Subject: Application No. 20/01048/LAPRE 

  

For the attention of Mrs. J. Foley 

  

Dear Mrs. Foley, 

  

We should like to object to the above application and make the following 

points: 

  

We are the nearest neighbour to the premises, unconnected to Bore Place. 

The  

applicant has not communicated with us at all although we have talked to 

his  

landlord at Bore Place who knew nothing about the application. 

  

The premises for the application are situated in an active farmyard, up a 

long  

driveway, approached from a lane. 

  

1. The granting of this licence will undermine the promotion of the  

"prevention of crime and disorder" because the sale of alcohol and  

consumption outside the premises in such an environment will increase  

the opportunity for crime owing to the close proximity of farm machinery  

and contents of barns. 

2. The granting of this licence will undermine the promotion of 

"public  

safety" enabling the consumption of alcohol outside the premises but in  

an area very close to livestock and dangerous farm machinery. 

3. The granting of this licence will undermine the promotion of 

"protection  

of children from harm" and is totally incompatible with the published  

plans for Bore Place. Their focus is towards opportunities for children 

and  

young people of all abilities through the provision of more programmes  

of work to be undertaken by daily visits or by school residential visits  

enabled by the recent increase in accommodation. A licence to sell  

alcohol here seems totally inappropriate. 

Yours sincerely, 

  

Michael and Elizabeth North 

TN8 7AR.              

  

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Report to Licensing Sub-Committee - For a New Premises Licence in respect of Blackwoods Cheese Company, Bore Place Road, Chiddingstone, Kent, TN8 7AR
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix D1
	Appendix D2
	Appendix E
	Appendix F




